
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
  
 
Time and Date:  The Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee met on Monday, October 26, 

2015 at 4:00 p.m. in the Board Room of Wausau City Hall.   
 
Members Present: Ruff (C), Plath, Gisselman, Field 
 
Others Present:  Atwell, Carlson, Heider, Lynch, Peckham, Lenz 
 
In compliance with Chapter 19, Wisconsin Statutes, notice of this meeting was posted and transmitted to 
the Wausau Daily Herald in the proper manner. 
 
Welcome and introductions           
 
Chairperson Ruff called the meeting to order at approximately 4:00 p.m. and welcomed members and 
guests.  Everyone present introduced themselves.   
 
Items on the agenda were taken out of order to accommodate visitors.   
 
Approve minutes of October 26, 2015 meeting.        
 
Field moved to approve the minutes.  Plath seconded, and the motion carried 4-0.   
 
Review plans and make recommendation on Stewart Avenue/Scott Street/Washington Street 
resurfacing project 
 
Ruff said we looked at the plans at a previous meeting.  Lenz said there aren’t any changes, but he wanted 
to keep this on the committee’s radar.  He gave an overview of the project. He said that since the 
committee’s review, Lynch had submitted comments which will be added to the feedback from this 
committee and passed along to Engineering and DOT.  He said this committee hadn’t officially endorsed 
the plan.  Lynch reviewed his recommendations.  Plath motioned to approve the plans with the 
recommendations from Lynch and the committee.  Gisselman seconded and the motion carried, 4-0.   
 
Discuss River Edge Parkway improvements including pavement marking and signage   
 
Ruff said he looked into DOT guidelines for pavement markings on multi-use paths.  He presented three 
different options for marking the River Edge Trail.    
 
Plath suggested in addition to pavement markings that signage to direct people to the River Edge Trail is 
important because it is difficult to access.  Ruff said that with the East Riverfront plans, access will 
improve.   
 
Gisselman asked about the width of the trail.  Lenz said it was 12 feet in most sections, with some 
narrower paths connecting to it.  Discussion followed on the plans for the East Riverfront.   
 
Ruff asked the committee about the three options.  Lynch said the option with the most paint requires 
more width and may not be feasible.  He said the option with the solid center line would help separate 
people going in different directions.  Field said she also liked the second option because it provides some 
organization over a plain path.  Atwell said people will slow down in the presence of other people 
regardless of a line.  He thought widening it and going with three lanes isn’t necessary.  He has seen paths 
with many different types of users without markings and they work fine.  Ruff said that the guides from 
DOT say that in most cases an unmarked path will work fine.  He said in heavy traffic areas some of the 
painting options may help.  Discussion followed.   
 
 
 



Bike/Ped Advisory Committee 
December 8, 2015 — Page 2 
 
Discuss an open streets event in Wausau         
 
Field said they had an organizer-meeting last month and they made good progress in planning.  The group 
is looking at Sunday, June 5th for the event.  They will meet with the police department and public works 
in the next few weeks regarding the logistics of closing off streets.  The committee will fine-tune the route 
and look at specific activities, as well as sponsorships and other details.  Gisselman asked about the route.  
Discussion followed.  Field said they looked at the Green Bay budget and thought we could do it much 
cheaper.  Ruff said this committee can stay involved.  Carlson said the bike polo club would like to 
participate.   
 
Discuss bike polo in Wausau                                          
 
Carlson, Wausau Bike Polo, talked about his organization which started in 2009.  He said there are bike 
polo clubs throughout the country, many of which host tournaments.  He said the Wausau club has about 
30 members and they would like to host a tournament, but there are no facilities. He said they are working 
with the Parks department on a space so that the club and sport can grow.  Atwell added that the current 
space they are using in Marathon Park is insufficient.  He thought that the club’s use for the past six years 
and the sport’s growing popularity justify a better, more permanent space.  Carlson said it takes an hour to 
set up each time they play because they have to bring the goals and boards with them.  He said if people 
come to play tennis, the polo court needs to be taken down. 
 
Lenz asked if a polo court could be used for other sports besides bike polo.  Carlson said that it could be 
used for speed/hard-court soccer, in-line hockey or similar sports that use boards and goals.   
 
Gisselman said he invited Wausau Bike Polo to the bike/ped meeting to inform the committee of their 
existence and build support for them.  He said they’ve met with the Parks department already and they 
were optimistic about providing some space for bike polo.   
 
Carlson added that the polo club draws people from the metro region; people from other cities drive into 
Wausau twice a week to play.  Atwell said that in other cities there is an overlap between bike polo 
players and the bike community in general – polo players are good advocates for bicycling.  Carlson said 
people have come to this area from Madison and Milwaukee for mountain biking, but have also played 
bike polo while here.   
 
Carlson said the Parks department gave the club a couple future options for a court (Pleasantview and 
Riverside parks), because the current tennis courts they use in Marathon Park are being repurposed for 
pickle ball.  Atwell said the surface in Pleasantview park is good and the Parks department feels the tennis 
courts there are not well used.  He added that Parks is also looking at providing boards from hockey rinks 
that may become available; they may support a designated polo court.  He said the only other issue would 
be lighting, which can be worked out later.  He said that ideally there would be minimal cost to convert a 
bike polo court.  Gisselman said there isn’t anything specific in the 2016 budget, but the Park & Rec 
committee would be taking the issue up in early 2016.   
 
Ruff said that this committee, being an advisory committee to other city committees, can help lend 
support.  Lynch said the club is really great for cycling in Wausau.  Discussion of promoting the club, 
particularly online, followed.  Ruff encouraged the bike polo club to keep the committee informed of their 
progress.   
 
Discuss and possible recommendation on WisDOT Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) 
 
Lenz introduced the TAP program and said the city is looking at applying, particularly for the River Edge 



Bike/Ped Advisory Committee 
December 8, 2015 — Page 3 
 
Parkway.  He said he introduced it to the Park & Rec committee and got the go-ahead to proceed with an 
application.  He said he is also talking to Public Works on a sidewalk project along Stettin Drive and a 
trail in the Business Campus.  He said the city can also lend support for a Safe Routes application if 
Regional Planning is applying.  Heider said that he is asking the school district about joining the 
application, and which schools would be included.  Ruff said that a previous Safe Routes application was 
for all K-8 schools in the city.  Heider said it could also include parochial schools.   
 
Discuss citywide street and sidewalk areas of concern 
 
Ruff said that he saw on the CISM agenda that Kent Street is up for reconstruction, which is a much-
needed improvement.   
 
Plath said we need to continue to educate people about riding on the sidewalks downtown.   
 
Lynch said he ordered the bike counters through the MPO, so he asked the committee to think about areas 
we might want to place them.   
 
Future items for consideration           
 
Ruff said the Wausau metro area received a bronze award from the League of American Bicyclists.  He 
would like to attend a future CISM meeting to make the announcement.  Lynch said he would like to 
obtain signs that show the designation.   
 
Ruff said that he is working with CWOCC on grant/foundation funding for the Sylvan Hill mountain bike 
trails.  He said this could be big for the City.   
 
Adjourn             
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:10 p.m.   
 
The Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee is next scheduled to meet on Monday, January 25, 
2016 at 4:00 p.m.   
 
 
 
BikePedMinutes 12082015 


